CABINET 15TH DECEMBER 2022

PRESENT: The Leader (Councillor Morgan) The Deputy Leader (Councillor Barkley) Councillors Bailey, Baines, Bokor, Harper-Davies, Mercer, Poland, Rattray and Rollings

Councillor Ward

Chief Executive Director Finance, Governance and Contracts Head of Contracts, Leisure, Waste and Environment Head of Planning and Growth Head of Finance Democratic Services Manager Democratic Services Officer (LS)

APOLOGIES: None

The Leader stated that this meeting would be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via the Council's website. He also advised that, under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting, and the use of any such images or sound recordings was not under the Council's control.

40. <u>DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS, AND OTHER REGISTRABLE AND</u> <u>NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS</u>

Disclosures were made as follows:

- by Councillors Barkley, Morgan and Poland interests in respect of item 8 on the agenda (Draft General Fund and HRA 2023-24 Budgets) as members of Leicestershire County Council;
- (ii) by Councillor Barkley an interest in respect of item 8 on the agenda (Draft General Fund and HRA 2023-24 Budgets) as a member of Syston Town Council.

41. <u>LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS</u>

No announcements were made.

42. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 17th November 2022 were confirmed as a correct record and signed.

43. QUESTIONS UNDER CABINET PROCEDURE 10.7



1

No questions had been submitted.

44. WASTE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY PANEL

Considered, a report of the Head of Governance and Human Resources (MO) to consider the recommendations of the Waste Management Scrutiny Panel (item 6 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

Councillor Ward, Chair of the Waste Management Scrutiny Panel, presented the recommendations of the Panel.

The Head of Contracts, Leisure, Waste and Environment assisted with consideration of the report.

The Waste Management Scrutiny Panel was thanked for its scrutiny of the matter, also all who had contributed to its work.

RESOLVED that officers draft an action plan to provide details on how and when the officer recommendations arising from the Waste Management Scrutiny Panel will be delivered.

<u>Reason</u>

To acknowledge the work undertaken by and the recommendations of the Waste Management Scrutiny Panel.

45. DRAFT GENERAL FUND AND HRA 2023-24 BUDGETS

Considered, a report of the Head of Finance setting out the projected base budget position for 2023/24 including service pressures and savings put forward for the year and providing the basis for the budget consultation (item 7 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

The Director Finance, Governance and Contracts and the Head of Finance assisted with consideration of the report.

A typographical error was noted, agenda page 61, Table 1, first column, mid table, £000 Actual 22/22 should read £000 Actual 21/22.

Officers were thanked for their work in producing the draft budgets.

RESOLVED

- 1. that the Cabinet endorses for consultation the draft General Fund and HRA Revenue Budgets for 2023/24 as set out in Tables 1 and 2 in the report;
- 2. that the Cabinet endorses for consultation the Loughborough Special Expense Budget and Levy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 2 to the report.



<u>Reason</u>

1.&2. To provide the opportunity for consultation on the General Fund and HRA budgets for the 2023/24 financial year.

46. <u>CAPITAL PLAN AMENDMENT REPORT</u>

Considered, a report of the Head of Finance setting out changes to the 2022-2025 Capital Plan and its financing (item 8 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

The Head of Finance assisted with consideration of the report. Noted that all reporting on the Capital Plan needed to differentiate clearly between live schemes, provisional schemes and schemes that were not within the Council's control.

RESOLVED

- 1. that the current Capital Plan for 2022/23 2024/25, as amended by the changes shown in Appendix 1 to the report, in the budgeted sum of £72,451,500 be approved;
- 2. a virement of £15k from Phone System Teams migration to Replacement Hardware Programme to enable the purchase of additional laptops and 2 in1 devices be approved;
- 3. increasing Northgate Single Use System by £52k funded from a virement of £19k from Cloud Implementation and £33k from Reinvestment Reserve to enable the extension of the project to November 2022 be approved;
- 4. adding a new HRA scheme for Digital Filing System HRA Software £33.2k, funded from HRA Major Repair Allowance be approved;
- 5. that HRA virements be recommended to Council: to increase Heating Scheme £250k, reduce Sheltered Housing Improvements £150k, increase Major Voids £140k, reduce Kitchens £70k, reduce Bathrooms £300k, increase Asbestos Removal £100k and increase Door Entry Systems £30k, to enable the programme to progress where work is being identified as part of Period 7 Capital Monitoring;
- 6. that replacement of Southfields Offices main building with LED lighting as part of a cost saving scheme, £85k from the Carbon Neutral Action Fund capital scheme, be noted;
- 7. that amendments be noted to the Capital Programme since the Leader Executive Decision published 20th September 2022.

<u>Reasons</u>

1. To enable the current Capital Plan to be the basis for capital spending by the Council and so that schemes may proceed.



- 2. To enable the Replacement Hardware Programme budget to be available in 2022/23.
- 3. To enable the Northgate Single Use System budget to be available in 2022/23.
- 4. To enable the Digital Filing System HRA Software budget to be available in 2022/23 from Major Repair reserve budget.
- 5. To enable the various HRA budgets to be available in 2022/23 to fund the virements.
- 6. To enable the LED project to be procured and implemented as per the Carbon Neutral Action Plan.
- 7. To note amendments to the Capital Programme since the Leader Executive Decision published 20th September 2022.

47. MAKE SILEBY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Considered, a report of the Head of Planning and Growth seeking approval for the Sileby Review Neighbourhood Plan to be 'made' as part of the statutory development plan for the Sileby Neighbourhood Area (item 9 on the agenda filed with these minutes).

The Head of Planning and Growth assisted with consideration of the report.

RESOLVED

- 1. that the Sileby Review Neighbourhood Plan is 'made' to confirm its status as part of the statutory development plan for Charnwood, in accordance with the provisions of Section 38(A) (4) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004;
- 2. that any minor amendments to the Sileby Review Neighbourhood Plan can be made under delegated authority by the Head of Planning and Growth.

Reasons

- 1. To fulfil the legal duty to make the Sileby Review Neighbourhood Plan part of the development plan for Charnwood.
- 2. To enable minor amendments such as typographical errors or factual corrections to be made efficiently.

NOTES:

1. Councillor Ward attended this meeting virtually. She was not taking decisions.



- 2. The following officers listed as present attended this meeting virtually: Head of Finance, Democratic Services Manager. The remaining officers listed as present attended in person.
- 3. The Democratic Services Manager attended this meeting in her role as Deputy Monitoring Officer.
- 4. The decisions in these minutes not in the form of recommendations to Council will come into effect at noon on Friday, 23rd December 2022 unless called in under Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rule 11.7. Decisions in the form of recommendations to Council are not subject to call in.
- 5. No reference may be made to these minutes at the next available Ordinary Council meeting unless notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by five members of the Council by noon on Friday, 23rd December 2022.
- 6. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting of the Cabinet.

